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I. 0n 22 February 0SS Sern gigneliied that source "PONT@RMC" (836)

ﬂ_:{ hed reported that an official of the Germen Embassy ia Nerthern

';ﬁi Ltaiy wus then in Switzer.and for the purpcsg_ofItransferring into
o Swiss francs scome marks telonging to‘members of Kesselringt's staff.
fource stzted that fesseiring and Rahn (former Germen ambassador to
Italy) were ready to qﬁit and even fo‘%lght egainst Hitler if the
#ilies could offer them a guld pro guo. The German official stated
‘ 1{ that'Kesseiring wag moved by the feeling that his wltimate destiny,
:l'i _ as things were going, was (1) to wind up in the Alpine "reduit® ' !

subordinate to S8 cfficials, or (2) to die ia & final resistance or
be killed for not resisting. ks iong as he was ia It Laly, Kesselrlng

still had power and was wiliing to use it by surrendering ia return

for scme concession. It ¥as aot ciear whether it was = question of
g concessions to Keszeiring and his staff or trecops perscaally, or
whether it was s question of concession to Germany in geuneral. A% any

rate, Kesselring and his staff appeared to want usable post-war funds.

Scurce did not disclose nsme ¢ German Embassy official but

would do s¢ and himself step cut of the matter if Lliles were interested

The official was ﬁgmpome to scurce agaia seeklng heip to sell the free

'_w;. ) marks at é‘good rate. Source stated that he wowld string him along
. :-:. . ‘J, s

in order to delay him for a few days.
“fj ‘ 088 representative in ew1tzerland ccmmented that he did not rate
Lﬂf, Source very highly but did have independent reasons to believe that

it was not impossible that Kesselring and Rahn might be preparing for
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something like this. He added that he was investigating the rumor
through mere direct and reiluble chanaels.

iI. 24 February. 0SS Casertz wired 0SS Bern that AFHQ vas
definiteliy intereséed in getting positive and ;uthentic information
to support .the aiieged disposition 6f Kesseiring. The story had
cropped up repeatedly, but there had never been proof of its accuracy.
If Kesselring had wanted to disputbh an emissary with an officisal
message it was thought that he could find ways of doing so. Meanwh1¢e
AFHé would certalnly not recommend to the Combined Chiefs of btaff

any modification of unconditional surrender such as would be involved
in promises, commitments or bargaining. Although Kesseiring as a
prisoner of war would undoubtediy be given the custo mary pr1v11eges of

his rank, it was extremexy duubtfui thqt any modiflcatxon of uncondl—“

tional surrender wouid be made.

IIT. The Loadon Delily Des;atch on 24 February carried the stor& from
Churles Clurke, its correspdn&ent in Bern, that Kesseiring had ma@é
secret overtures to the Allies, quoting a statement said tc have been
mude by a @eMber of Kesselring's entoursge rebérted at the ‘time to have
been in Switzerland. hccording to Clarke's stéry, Keéselring offered
to withdraw under Al.led pressure leaving Northern Italian citieg
intact and preventing their de=tructiru bv Neé-Faccists. In return,
K855e¢ring was said to have aukcd for & flee retreat toward German

territory where lLis soldiprc cculd bte used to maiantain order. He also
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asked for sssurences that he, wewid nct be considered ¢ war criminsl.

Iv. L Merch., 0SS Bern cignalled that a seccnd source hed arrived

in Bern 75 Februsry having left. Viemua c¢n or ébcut 12 February.

Scurce for several years hud teen wcquainted with one Hcttel, described
as one of the S8 chiefs in Vieans wh; knew vsguely that scurce had

g indirect contacts with Americans in Switzerland. BRefcre his departure

.

o from Vienn& scurce had been informed by Hottel that Kaltenbrqpner,
Chicf of the SD, wentec to see him. Ka@@enbrunngf infermed source that
he and Himmlef were mcstranxious to end the war and, &5 a firet sfép,
vere contemplating the liquidgtion of "war-mongers" within the Nazi
éért&, especiclly Bormann”(Chief of Staff of the Chance;; of the Party;
member of WariCaﬁ&netj §5 Qbergruppenfuehrer; after 1941 Hess's
succegsor la office). Hlmmicriand Ka;tenbfunnéf wefe mcstranxious te
establish ccntact with the British and Americans and asked sourcé
to make an effort in this direetion on his trip to Switzerland. They
contemplated sendingAto Switzerland s high S8 foicial who wopld
epeak cn their behalf provided con@aqtqccu¢dibe estabLiéhed. o
Source, on his o%n initlative, swgested Alfred Potocki, brother
7rcf»the former Pciish mini;te; to Washington, should be permitted to
g0 to Switzerland with him ss he felt Potocki had firét class centacts
with the British. Hottelrimmediateiy srranged an exit visa for

Potocki «nd his mother. Potocki expected tc proceed first to

- Leichtenstein where on L Merch he had act yet arrived.
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058 representative in Bera stated thet while he believed the
source to be "rather light-weight," he ccneldered tbgwgbove approach
interesting as & sign ol the incressing disintegratien within the
Nazi Party uand ss an indicatlon of Himmier's antics to prcpare ulibié.
According to source, Himmier was then Crg¢1121n5 tne defense cn the

Fastern Frent and was largely in cormend cf that theatre of war.
V. 3 Murch. SSirep¥esentative ia Bera reported‘thut further
conversution with scurce mentioned in P;ragraph IV above, indicated
that his ‘€D contecls znd iaformaticn had more importance than wes
criginelly beileved. Information frow other goocd sources teaded tp
bear out the indications'glven by scurce that Himmler, Kaltenbrﬁﬁneri
and certein cther high 88 officials might ncot go along with the die~
hard fanatice and might try to gain some immunity by cerving in a
treusitionzl regime between Hitier and the occupatLonai forces.
They might possibly prefer this to the alternetive of joining Hitier,
Eermann, et al in the German "redult." 088 repre;igégtlve again
pcinted cut the statement earlier contributed tc Kaltenbrunner that
Himmier wes anxious to liquidate war~mcﬁgers such as Bormenn.

0<s représentative furthef stated that, aithcugh ﬁerscns cf ‘the
Himmier, Kaitenbrunnbr type couid 1atura¢¢y gain no Lmrunlty from us,

z8 long as they beiieved this were pcesible, it might give us an

opportunlty to drive a wedge in the SD and thus toc reduce the effective-

ness of edemy plans for the German "reduit." Stating that he had no
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conscience aboﬁt doubié-crossing types like Himmier éﬁa KalLeﬁbrunner,
ke said that through indirect channeis he was arranging tc have Hottel
come to the Swiss Frontier where a trusted iatermediary would meet
hinm. ‘ |
VI. 5 March. 0SS representative in Bern signaiied that tkrough
'two ¢lose friends in the Swiss secret inteilizence he was advised

] )
that an important Ituiisn industrialist named Baron Parelli (the
epeliing of his name wus uncertein) wished to facilitute contact
between.important German afficials in Northern Italy Qnd the Allies
with the generali view of terminating Germen resistance in Nerthern
Ttaly. One of above-mentioned scurces wus & person well-kncwn to
the War Department"under (?)“ﬁumber 6028."' Baron Parelii had been for
many years Italian représentative of Nash Kelvihator and cl;imed to
be well-kncwn in Detroit.

After ; reebing between Baron Purelii and an Intermedisry, it
seemed desireble to folliow up the matter apd rather unexpectgdiy 0S8
~representative had been adviced tate on the day of 2 March by his | f
Swiss secfet intelligence friend that Stendarteafuehrer Doilmenn and
TZimmer, who wes reputediy Dollmann's dide, had . arrived at the Swiss
Frontier. Reports hud it thut Doiimana wWas éxcéedingly inf uential
in Rome prior to its siveration and that he upparentiy ciaimed credit
for huving saved Rome from destructicn. rneputedliy he hed buiit up

a consgiderablie fortune in connecticn with the raanscoming of impertant )
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individuals and genersliiy, though sometimes for a price, had shown
some sympathy for Itslisns¥
0OfS intermediery, who wes procgg?ing to Lugaac on other
bgsiness, met Dolimann, Zimmer and Rare;;i and a Swiss inteliigence
officer =% Lugano on 3 March; 7To the Swiss intermed@ar&, Dolimenn
had apparently ciaimed that he~fepresented Kesseliring, Rahn (Naii
et diplomatic representative in Italy), Woiff (senior SS and police
' leader, Italy), and Cercter or Hurster (ideatity unkncwn); but to
0es inter@ediary he ﬁever specificaiiy so stated. To the latter !
he indicated only that after ccnsustations at Fassnuc (Fasana ?
Veanice areu or Istria ?7), and subject to confirmation on © March,
he wouid return to Switzer.snd oa Thursday, 8.March, with credentizls .
and definite progpsals. The nature cf the proposals were unot indicated
* but from other taLkérwhich intermedigries hadiross representative
assumed that they would Bégrfupon the future disposition.ofﬁcérmag
forces in Nc?thern Italiy. - 7 7 .
 'As & real test of Dollmena's sincerity and abiliﬁy go Act, it
was suggesiedithét the relesse ofwceriain itailan p;tfioﬁs be -
promptly effected. (One of these being Parri, otherwise kncwn as g

\ Meurizio, a CLN representative who had been arrested by the Germans

in Turin. On 8 March OSS reprecentative signuiled that he had been
told Parri was Being released. See paragraph VII below.) 088
intermediary gave Dollmann no name; Dollmann probabiy believed that

he was>associating Withwawrépfesentative of the State Department. -

Aeddd At ¥ L me e aerete ot

. . ¥Eugen Doilman has been described as Himmier's perscnal envoy in Italy,
S where he has lived for years. He speaks fluent Itaiian, and resided in

Rome\before liberation. ~ R "
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On 5 March 0SS representative stated it was not yet clear
whether this move of Dollmsan's was separate from or parallel to
the eariier negotiations mentioned in paragraphs IV and V, but he
was inclined to believe that s far &s the North Itaiian situation
was concerned, they wouid merge if, in fact, ﬁollmann was. acting

for Kesseiring, Rahn, et al., Without ciarification of Dolimann's

roite, there wss natural.y nc menticn made of the Himmier, Kaltenbrunner
iine . .

088 representative stated that if Dolimann returned he wowd
arrange to find out what he hed to say. If this shouwid be of a
nature to facilitate unconditioﬁ;l surrender of the German forces
in Nprtberﬁ Ltaiy, he suggested that it might be desirablg té arrange
a military contact to take piace on the Swiss side of the Frentier.

- - He remarked that in spitevcf AFHQ's cbservetions that if
Kesselring wished to dispatch an emissery with an official message
he could slweys find ways of doing it, it should be remembered
that those around Kesseiring who might wish to faciiitate a surrender

could act only with the greatest secrecy lest their movements be

betrayed by fanatic Nazis in Kesselring's gpppurage. Thus, he poinﬁed _
out, the normal‘procedure of sending an alrplane or messenger to owr
lines might prove difficult, thcugh'it wes relatively easy for high

officials to come to Switzeriand, as théy had béen doing conéinuouéhy'

cver a tong period, without arcusing suspicicn.
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0ss lepre<entat1ve in Bern stated that he had canfluence in
the Swiss through whom he was de&Llng and furtner pointed out that

all Swiss interests lay in the facilitation of a peaceful surrender

of Germans in North Italy.

'WII. On 8 March, 0SS representative in Switzerland signalled that
Vaffen 88 Genéral Kari Wolff, together with an OKW represéntative
presumably from Kesseiring's staff, plus Dollmunn and Zimmer errived
inliugano that morning ailegedly prepured to talk definitely. If

this were confirmed, he would see what they had to say. He had beén
teid also that in answer to his request farri was about to be liberated.
If both these reports were true, 0SS representative suggested that a

high SACMED authdrity te prepared to go to Bern. Said }epreéentative'

-

could, with absolute secrecy, arrange entry into Switzerisnd in '
civiiian ciothes, sand secret cooperation of locai authorities could
be assured. There was nothing unusual in this as h;gh mliitary

-

authoritles from SHAEF constantly came to Bern. ) ]
- 088 representative thowght that the potentialities of these
developments were so far-reachlng that they justified immedlate

.consideration in the highest quarters. If Wolff were really working

: with Kesselring, these two might effect an uncondltlonal surrender

;2‘ proviaed absolute secrecy could be preserved. ' e

The question remalned,’hgw much did Himmler know about this?
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VIIT. Meanwhiie, on 12 February, 0SS Caserta had signaiied Bern
that an officer named Adriaznc of CLN, Venice, would shcrtiy
% o ) arrive in Switzeriand and seek to contact OSS.. According to reports,
} he would bring information about Severai nigh German officers ia the
Venice area whe were said to be part of & Germsn insurrectionary
movement end disposed to collsborate with Allied foreces in that
area. It weas stated that oﬁr primary interestvwould be to ascertain
everything possible sbout said German officers: their sime and
acti%ations, and the strength, composition, Leaders and dieposition
of the alleged insufrectionary movement. OSS Bern was téid to |
i < : facilitate contact and advise if contact were mede. AWarning was given
‘ :

that an attempt might be made to sell an elsborate military plan

which should be treated with great caution.
Connection between the reported Adrianc deal and the alleged
arrival of Wolff, Dolimann, Zimmer et al is not apparent, nor has

there yet been reported the arrivai of Adrisno in Switzeriand.

IX. keference the Adrianc story, the following was repcrted from

0ES Fiorence:

L1, Starting 10 February, military command of Venice was in
contact with Venice Platzkommandentur, who, in turn, stated he
represented German insurrection movement and was in touch with Kesselring.

_Desired to meet Allied.officer,tg present proposals and receive a reply

for a surrender of troops operating‘in Italy. On 10 February, Liberation
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Headquarters had sent Adriano to Switzeriand to contact 0SS and
make the ;roposals. It was said he cpuld approach Kesselring with'
the followings ” |
1) Through Paulus to persuade Von Arnim to join Anti-Nazis.
2) The three Generals to bring about coil;pse of the Front.
3) Allies to land at several points on the Adriatic.
4) Parachutists to .and in Upper Erenta Valiey to isolate
Kesselring's HQ from Germany.
'5) Guarantee Kesseiring and a few others not to be considered
war criminails. 7 '
6) rGuaranxee German people nct to be extermlnated nor sterilized.
7) Leave the three Generals w1th an appearance ofmauthority,
' presumably as police service. —

A e e s sty

Reliability of above report is questioned.

2. A second North Italian Source reported ;O February that from various
qub—sources, chiefly Germsn Consul in Turin, the Germans had declared that
they wculd like to make a separate peace in Italy and to meet an American’

Officer to present their proposals.
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X. On 8 Marech, 088 Casertalnotiried.ﬁss‘representative that AFHQ

vas considering the qﬁestion of whethéer or not a representative
should be sent to Switzerland for a possible meeting with German
authorities. In the meanwhile, 0SS reﬁresantativo should promise
nothing but should secure whatevcr'inform3££on he could, esrvecially

on the reliability of the parties involved and details of the

Kesselring - Himpler relationship.

?I. % March., 0S8 representative in Switgerland'signalled that Wolf?

hed indYcated a willingness %o attempt developing a progrem to take

. Northern Italy out of the conflict. Wolff considered that a mers
military surrender would be difficuit to effect. He preferred that
capitulation be preceded by & statoment to the Qermgp people from Gernan:
leaders in HNorth Italy, that any further strugzle was hopeless and would
merely causs nesdlwsss (German bloodshed and destruction. UWolff stated‘
that Rakn was in accord with him but that Kesselring whose adherence
wag essentlial had not been won over.

Wolff was rroceeding immediately to join Kessslring snd andeavor

to sell his program to him. Wolff would keep in touch with us.

Wolff had enquired about an alleged Britich agent, one Captain
Ducker, who had recently been turned over to him vy Grasiani and |
Teleased to return to SACHZD via Switzerland (apparently vith the 1dea"
of belping to negotiate a surrender). Wolff was puz:led as to vhal
rolc‘cuytpin Duck;} vas reaily playing.

(On 13 March, 0SS Bern signalled that Ducker had turned out to

be a British SOF agent named Lt, Mallaby who had used this clgvcr.ruso
Y -

(3
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in order to get out of Italy and report to SOH. Being out on perole,

he propossd to return to Wolff's HQ where two other British officers
bad baen left es hostages. Ducker had already spent a week in a

Swiss internment cemp, and 0S8 representative, without disc1631n¢ the

baskground, had arranged that Mallaby wait in Switzerland as there

was no time limit on hia parole. If thers wore a further meeting
with Woiff. the matter could cagily be clesred inasmuch as Hallaby's
story checked with Wolff's),

. - ?arri ("Maurizio", CL¥ sgent mentioned in paragraph VI above)
had besn delivered in Zurich uncenditionally and even prior to ﬁny
indication that 0SS representative would s00 Wolff, 0S8 representative
bad 2een him in good health the night of 8 March. Parri, st that timo;
did not knoi how he had bsen released; Stating that it was important
that the circumstances of his release be kept mecret, 0SS rcpresentative
propoesed that when Parri's presence in Switzerland becane known, it be
hinted that he was freed in exchange for a Gerzan P/H.

Truthfully or not, Wolff claimed that Hismler was unavare of his
activities,

Since Wolff appafontly coptrolled all police on entirs Sﬁisl -
Italian frontier, it wos thought that we no; had & means of qpici
contact with top German per:onalities in Northern Italy. An intermediary
(Y) was to have further neeting with Wolff on 9 March and a full report

would follow by regular channelg,

XII. On 9 Merch, 0SS Caserta informed 0SS Teprsaentative (who shall

- Approved for Release: 2023/07/17 G00033855 . .~~~
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henceforth be called X) that Fleld Marshal Alexander had outlined
to Xorshal Brook a proposed rlean involving the dii}ateh to Switzerland
of two senior staff officorq who might meet with German reprosentatives,
0S8 had been dirscted to subnit a plan fof all necessary steps, including
arrangemants for a mesting place in Switzerland Qnd transportation %o
and from that place to Annemasss or vieinity. In addition 0S8 would
be called upon to provide communications, clerical asxlistance,
interpreters and all nocegsary safeguards fo} the security of the
ogrration which, within 0S8, vas {o be known by the code nams SUNRISE,

LI N )

(tarller in the day, Colonel Glavin bad called 2 meeting of
staff officers to outline the developments and to determine the Beanaey
ia which 038 might maeet whatsver responsibilities it was asked to
undsrt{ake. He cantioned that the succass of the projeat depended upon

absolute secracy).
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XIII. 10 Merch. A supplementary report from X stated that Wolff
had been accompanied to Zurich by Dollmann; Lt.'Col. Wenner, his

ullitary expert; Zimmer agd.Parelli. X had consented to ses only

Wolff who, accompaﬁied by a Swiss interuediary, came to his apart:-

on ihe evaning of 8 March. X and T (the 1nt;rmadiary mentioned in
raragracvh XI ahéfe) then talked to Wolff alone, and Y later interviewsd
Wolff and Dollmeann.

It was apparent that Wolff was a distinctive personality.
Everything indicated that ho represented bhe.more moderate elemant
in the Naffen SS with a certsln amixture of romanticism. FHe wvas the
.most dynamic parsonality in Northern Italy and - after Kesselring -
the most rowerful.

Wolff stated that the time had come when some German with the
powar’to act should lead Germany out of the war. To end uao}sss and
paterial destruction he was willing to act and felt thant he could

Persuade Keaaelring to join him. As far as Northern Italy was

_concerned, he and Keaselring controllsd the situstion; end as far as

Yeutern Austria was concofnod. his own authority included the

Vorarlberg, Tyrcl and the Brenner Pass with:both Nerthern and Southern
approaches. In contrast with the situation of 20 July 1544, HRitier ,
and Hidmler wou;d bq,poworléss to take sffective ocountermeasiures were -
Yolff and Kosselriﬁg.to take jolint =zction. ?arbicularly bscauss pany

‘Genersla on the Western ?ron€ wors walting for someone tc take the

lead, their joint action wouwld have vital'repercusaionl. As far as
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his own parsonal sa{ety was conesrned, Wolff made no Tequent s,

To bdring about setion Wolfs envisaged the following proceaura:

1) Ee would mest Kesselring, with whom for saveral ]
Jears he claimed the closest Personsal relations, over the
veekend of 10 ~ 11 March with the purpose of obtaining a ' \
definite commiiment. Kessselring, who had insisted that
throughout his iong military caresr he had always kept his
oath of sllegiancs ané was nov tos old to chenge his ideas,
would have the prodlem of reconciling any such proposals
with his ocath; but Wolff belisved that Kesselring could be
won over to the futility of the struggle and that, above
his duty to the Fushrar, waslhis duty to the Gorman people,

2) With Kesselring he would draft an appedl to be signed
by Kesselring, Bahn, himself and othars, soﬁting forth the
uselessness of the struggle, their Tesponsibility toward the
German psople to terminate it, and an appeal to mnilitary
commanders and all concerned toldiaalaociata themselves from

the Hizmler - Hitler control: The Germans would end all’
| hostilities in Korthern Italy, |

3) 1In order to reach the German leaders and the Gcrmaﬁ
psovle, Q redio and leaflet eampaigg;gpuld bes prepared.

’

Wolff beliaved that wers Eesselring won ovor; he would come

secretly to Switserland to mest Allied military representatives and to
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coordinate purely miliiary measures of surrender bassd on the above
appesl. Apparently no cne in Kesselring's immediate staff wes suite:
to do this for bhim; Boettiger, hiw Chief of Staff, was not yet
acquaintesd with the project. |

in addition to the release of Parri (already reﬁorted). Wolfr,

as svidence of hiu abllity to aét. prepareds |
| 1) To aiscontinue active warfare against the Partisans,
keeping up only the necessar& pretencs pend{ng axecution of
tha plan;

2) To releaste into Switzerlsand several hundred JEDS
\Jews or Jedburghs ?) internsed at Bozea. Wolf claimed that
he had refused whatever rsnsom money had been offered for then,
and 1f 1t had disappeared, it had been swallowsd up by inter-
. . nediaries;

3) To assume full reuponéibility for the safpty and
treatment of 360 British and Smerican prisoners, of whom 150
wers in the hospital at &a£tua and 200 on the gouthern
outskirts of that city. This, he c;aimed. accounted for all

t  the British and American prisoners held in Northern Italy as
the reet had recently been transferred to Germany; ' 0

4) To release into Switzerland Sogno Franci if said

individnal, who was a well-known patriot working with CLMAIL
and the British whose releass Parri particularly dosired,

could be found:

5) To facilitate, inzofar as he could, the return to

‘
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Borth~1$é1y of a1l Itallan officers then held in Germany
who might, in the post-hoastilities periocd, prove usefﬁl.

6) Wolff would welcome the help of Neurath whom he
felt had conuidorable- fnfluence on Kescelring. KHe would

invrite Nourath to Join him in I%aly,

Zarly in February Wolff? had suﬁ Eltler snd Fimmlar snd
ndvised them of the general hopelessness of the North Italien
situation but had received from them no definite instructions.

X commented that, whils it was neoeéury to withhold final
Judgment until the results of the ¥olff - Kessalring conversations
vers known, he belisved that this might present a very unimque
opportunity to. shorten the war and to x;erait the occﬁpnﬁion of Northsrn
Italy and possibly, even, the psnetration of Austria under the most
favorable conditions. It might, xlso, wraeck Gerﬁan planas for the
establishment of a \Maqnia. X trusted that if he got word that
Kesselring or another -high military authority were coming to Switrzorlangd,:
with the power to alter the course of military affairs, SACKED would
be prepared to send to Swit'z.erland an appropriate military :apx-puntg
tive. X wighed it clearly‘undernood. that he had engsged in no '
nlegotia.tionl;l he had merely listened %o HYolff4s presentation and had
stated, with no refutations on ¥Wolff's part, that tmc;mditional
surrender was the only possible courss. ‘

X lmev of no particularly close relations bstwesn Kasgeliring

and Himmler.
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XI¥. On 10 March, full detzils of the SUNRISE plan as approved by
AFEQ were wired to Barn (=nd Washington). OCol. Well with fourtesn
personnel would proceed to Annemasse 11 March to Jjoim Crockett who )
arrived thers 10 March to confer with X. “THis personnel would be
kert in France as a pool to aupplegent whafevor X could provide.
They would be introduced into Switzerlaand pnly as they vers needed
and as securlty was assursd. AFHQ had designated Col. Glovia os
Secretariat for the conference, u2nd ke snd one interproter would
sogomyany AFHQ ateff conferess sn the date iatar to be n.nnouncod X
wag to have fuli aa‘:-;;.—g‘&m o5t the final choica of a meeting site,
X wvas to sscure from Wolff a atntement that he, Wolff, and his
selected assoolates would proceed to Swltzerlend at a date chosen
by AFHE. Whenm X had notifisd Caserte Shat arrsngement® wore complabted

AYHQ would move.sithin twenty-four hours.

Xy, On 11 March, X signalled t)mt auccess of the operntion dependad
upon complete secrecy, /Polnting to the fact that he had not yet had
final word from Wolff and that the cooperation of Xesselring was
essentisl, he nevertheless 1mz;liad that 1f this wers acceptable to
APHQ, the two senlor staff officers might well come to Annemasse in
resdinees for proposed n.ee#lng. In uil eveants, he could mest with
initisl personnel requirements provided 055 Caserts supplied the

communications. He had u:)t‘ Ywl mentioned the affair to his British .

S0B or $I collesguee, bhbugh he could roadily work with either or both

Af 1% were so glosiro&.
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No word whatever would be giver to the Germans until APEQ had
| ‘ glven hinp clearance. In any event, .ha did not expect %o hear from

the Gsrwans until 12 March at the earliest,

XVI. Col, Glavin signalled X that ¥eil and Party had left early
that zorning before the arrival of X's signal described in paragraph XV
above. Since AFHR had plsaced full rearcnsidility on 08S al'one to

hapdle all arrsngements, he did no% deem 1% necsessary or desirabls to'

consuld British collsagues.

. AV1I, On 12 March, X signelled t'lmt Parelli had Just returned from
seeing Wolff., DYarelli stated thst vhen Wolff had raaqhe;d Pasano (§Q South),
he bad telephoned Kesselring's BQ only %o find that Kesselring had just
basn sunmoned to Hitler's HQ, Wolff expected him back within three day-u. '
but there was a change that he might never return. The meeting was,
therefors, postponed pending word from Kesselring. X suggested that
AFTHQ conslder whether they would be interested in contacting Wolff,
astusing, of course, that he had a Plaen of action, Wolff had sald that
he would come %0 Swit zerland at any time.

X had suggested to Parelli that Wolff indicate (a) What he
proposed to do if Kesselring did not returm; (b) ¥hat he would do

if he likewise were ordersd to rarort to the Jushrer: (c)' If he

refucsed to report, what was his plan, and wha$ forces would he dispose

of to carry it ocut; (4) Waat areas could he tearorarily contrel for
; possible contact with Allied forces even if the ‘principal Army commanders

pproved for Release: 2023/07/17 C00033855 s
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d1d not cooperate,

X surmised that Xesselring's call to tae Fuehrer's HQ might

foreshadow an attempted evacnation of Korthara Italy and that if

Kesselring did not convince Hitler and Himxler that he would coopera!

he might be given oeither a new comrand or prison,

XVIII, Supplementing this messege (See parsgraph XVII above) completing

Parelli's faport. X submitted the following:

1) Upen his return to Italy, folrf had received a telégran
from Keltenbrunner sadvising him to avoid extablishing contact
in Switzerland as 1% might'mean catastrophe for Kaltenbrun;er's
own plans. Upon investigation, Wolff had 3% scovered that
Berster, at the time of Dollmani{s first trip %o Bwitzeriana;had

wired Kaltenbrunner advising him that an attempt might be made

to effect contacts in Switzerland., According to Parslli, Wolff h
felt that this wirs was sent to cover Dollmann's track,and'

that Harster was dependsble. (X considered this explanation
possible but difficult to verify).

2) Based on information that Mussolini had obtsined Spanish

consent for eatry and was preparing to floa o Spain. he wvould

be placed'undar armed guard.
3) Wolff considersd that Obersturmbanntuehrar Wuenlcho.

novw belleved to be hospitalized in Franco. might. be useful to

' further his plans. (X asked Paris to give Bern full information

on Wuensche's availability and sentiments.

1
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4) If trustworthy and evaileble, Wuenschs mizht bs
usad as an exchange to cover the disappearsnce of Parri uhiéh
%lff, ‘reputedly. wae having difficulty explaining.

5} ¥olff had cluimed to have thres milliard nominal
value sﬁares in Itslian companies on the disposition of which ‘
ke 2sked advice. | :

6) He had sgeln enguired as to .vt.:other we had any requests
for the facllitation of & return from Germeny to Northera italy

. of Italisn officers who might be useful in the post-war period.

(See parsgraph XIII abovﬁ). X had Qggented no action which

wight aompvrouin én already highly involved situation.

XIX. On 13 Merch, X signalled that for reasons of security Glavin
and staff conferess should sventually enter Switzerland via Basel.

As neither Wolf{ nor eventually Kessalring could be absent for any’

'1angth of time at this origis without avakening serious asuspicion, the

noeting place should be somewhere near ths 3wiss - Italian bordets, .

Be had selected a quiet apot near Asconfa. ‘

[y

o

XX, On 13 Harch, Glavin signalled X that although the Germans had
not signified they were ready, AVHQ had decided to move at once.
Two representatives, accompanied dy Col, Glavia, wounld lpave at noon

that day for Lyon.

XXI., 13 March. According to a signal from Annemasse, the SUNRISE

Y——
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Party errived in Lyon at 1630 hours, They were to proceed %o
Annemssse 14 March to meed with X.

AXIXI, At 0114 hours 14 NMarch. A slgnal was sent to SUNRISE Party
at Annennsse stating that CIGS had enquired as to what arrangements
had been made for the satry of AYHQ representatives into Switzerland
a.ﬁd. whether or not similar arrangements might be made for Russian

generals. HNHad any further contact been wade with Wolffy

XXI1I. AL 1750 hours 14 March, a reply from Annemasae stated that,
under certain conditions, a single Soviet representative might be
introduced inte Switzerland provided he Jolned the SUNRISE Party as

rart of a group,

IXIV. At 1930 hours 14 March, the SUNRISE Party requested that cods

names be 1ssued for personalities involved in rroposoed negotiations.
At 2345 14 Earch, code words werse sent to SUNRISE Party.

XXY « At 0149 hours 15 March; SUNBRISE Party signalled that a

confarence between Ool. Glevin, X and others concerned had bosn h‘olvd

at 055 HQ Annemasse and thaﬁ arrangenents had besn made to cross the

border thé fallowing day and arrive at Bern to avait future develop-

XXVI. At 0245 hours 15 Narch, a full report on the Annemasse | -
. . ‘
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conference was signalled.

X, 1% was saigd, indicated that about three weeks ago, Kesselring
khad askad Heursth to meet Westihal, hils Chief of Staff, and Dlaskowits,
Cormanding Army Group R. They were querled by Neurath for Kesselring
to determine their viaws in Trespect to the need for nagotiation with
the Alliss. (This information had deen furnished to SHAEF through
ass).

‘ With referencs to i's suggeations to Parelll (Sce raragrarh XVII
abgva):
’ (1) wolrs proposed to go ahead even if Keseolring atd

not return but bad pointed out that he would deley his action

in an attenpt to win over Keseselring's successor, if there

were one; 1f ho failled, he woula‘tben act ;lnnes

(2) 1Ir Kosselring were not greseat, Wolff would not

leave fo repcrt to Bitler., If Kesselring's esuccessor had

arrlrved, dolff woulgd delay Rhis reoly tn guch an orde;.

(3) If above~described conditiens regarding Kenselring
aad his successor existed, Wolff would come to Switzerland

with military adviéora who would bring with them the ansver

28 to what araa; they could control. ‘

Holff further ststed that he would be 51ad to take an 0SS radioe
oﬁerator to his HQ who could keep him in touch with the 3UNRISE Party.
According to X, Wolrs had‘tnkan a rosition dsscrided ;a an honorable
one; he Qaa compitted to go through with his plapt and decisions.

"k
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Late information recaivad through 053 contact with Wolff
indicatod that Yolff had narrovly missed death by Allied bombing as
he retumad_:fron hie last meeting in Switzerland. |

| Wolff bad stoted that Xeltsnbrunner was then at Feldkirch;
that in hie Judgment the time for any coup vaa' with simnltanecun
offensives on East and West Fronts. Wolfe sought advice on the
disposal ’of Koehler and Horghese forcas., Yolff pointed aut that
iz Kaltanbmnn;r wera to srrive at his HQ, he would be unsdle to
ieave without emborrassment or risk. (It wvas evident thst on

13 March Wolff 4id not know that there was a successor being appointed

for EKesselring).

'

Signal further stated that, Judging from all availedle informe~
tion, X had the feeling thst HKimmler sought peace; X considered that
the potential results of an early meeting betwsen AFHQ ond qualified
Qerman renresentatives would (1) secure a full surrender, or (2) cffect.
confusion behind the German 1193&. or (3) obstruct the development of
a German Maquis, or (4) effect a combination.of (2) and (3) in the
event that (1) could not be realized. |

Request was made for a daily military intelligence summary,

AIVIT. &t 1220 hours 16 March, word arrived that Glaviz, Weil,

Lemnitzer and Airey had crossed the Frontisr und.u' 61,7111&: cover and

were proceeding to Bera.
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XXVIII. 15 March. 1832 hours. SGS wired SUNRISE Party that

. Combined Chiefs of Stsff had been notified of Pertinent points

in their message described in Paragraph XXIII above.

XX1X, S08 signalled that CCS had stated that Ruesian representa-
tives would no% join SUNRISE in Switzerland. SUNRISE was %o carry
out orders as circumstonces Permitted. RBussians would take part in

discussions at APHQ on arrival of German delegation.

Xxx.* 16 March. SUNRISE wired SGS that intermedisries betwesn
X and Critic had left Bern early 15 March and were expected back

from Critie's gquarters on Ba.turdﬁy or Bunday. Msantime, arrange-

ments were being made so that Nicholson and McNeely might be near

at hand for next meeting in the vieinity of Locarno.

XXXI, 17 March. SUNRISE signalled SGS that intermediary had

returned and that possibdilities of conference between X and Critic

looked favoradble for Monday, 19 March.

T XXXII, 18 March. SUNRISE Party wired from vicinity of Locarno

%3

that Critic, who would appear on Monday, had given intermediary

following information: Bmperor had been put in command of ¥Western

®* Critic - Wolff Graduate -~ Zimmer

Emperor - ZHesselring Nicholson - Lemnitzer
Glazier - Vietinghof ..., . .. KcReely -~ Alrey

o
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Front and would be raplaced by Glazier. V¥hile new gppointment

would delay any immediate move in Northern Italy, it might open

up vossibilities on the Wastern Front.

XXXIII. 19 March. SUNRISE Party acknowledged SGS' authorigati..

%m to mest Oritic and his associates 1f situation dsveloped to make
“Seshwo  thig desirable.

« KXXIV. 20 March. SUNRISE signal summarized meeting with Oritic

X 540 held nasar Locarno 19 March. Following a long conference betwaen

(\‘D dret }\;,\9 X and Critic, Nicholson and McNeely hed dscided to meet with
Critic. WNicholeon told Critic that the problem resolved ltself
into whether Critic should try his hand with Glezier, or should .
procead to Emperor's EQ on the Western Ifxfont before seeing Glazier._
Critic had decid.;d to leave on 20 March for Emperor's HQ for
purposs of obtaining his support and return to make definite
proposals to Glazier. His trip could not be accomplished in less
than five days; it might take as much as seven. |

Throughout the whole meeting, Critic made no reference to

any conditions of surrender and did not attempt to bargain. ‘1
seemed possidble, therafore, that Oritic had already gons further

with the Empertr than he had previocusly admitted.

XXXV, 21 Merch, BUNRISE signalled SGS that arrangements were

2K Sk

9\w~«\. ' being made for next meeting with Oritic, assuming his mimsion were

Buon T0P SECRET
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successful. HNicholson felt that Oritic would come to next meeting

either with definite plans and proposals or admit his inability to

act. Approval of plan to wait in Switzerland fer such a meeting

was raquested.

XIXVI. Oolonel Glavin and Weil signalled brief statement for

2 679
NCIR relay to 109,
Bg.\’n-_
XXXVII. 21 March, McNeely forwarded summary of intelligencs
. .
X S g obtained at meeting of Oritic on 19 March, giving an estimate of
vEva—
?\ Critic himself and a report as to the forces whom Critic claimed
Barn

to 'control in the mar areas.

y%‘-’%dm XXXVIII. 21 March. S0S approved SURRISE Party's remaining in
A

Cﬁ\anes\s} Switzerland to awalt next contact with Critic.
Kt :
Qonin Vo
XXIXIX, 22 March. Movement report from Glavin and ¥eil,
X% %4
&«M Rerm
Xg L\.gd\ XL, 22 March. Wire to Glavin and Well assured them that all 0SS
’ “~Xo Plane had been made for North Italian capitulation insofar as was
e — .
V“"_:\,_ practicable.
Coninl e
S¢ “ﬂ XLI, 23 March. Recommendation from Nicholson and McNeely that
5
9\4-& Parri as a security measure be removed from Switzerlend and taken to

Dowa— Italy for confsrencés. Before he left Switzerland he would have

.t VR
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conferred with Cadorna and could bdring 1atest'appraisal of

situation in North Italy to ATHQ.

XLIX. 24 March. S0S signalled approvel of trip for Par:

an escort.

ILIII. 24 March. SUHR;SE signalled SGS suggesting that Cadorns

sccompany Parri to Caserta. (Parri would trsvel under pseudonym

Amalfi; Cadorna as Montesano).
XLIV. 25 March. Colonel Glavin signalled orders that 0SS,
teking instructione from AFHQ, should handle Parri and Oadorna

during thelir stay in Southern Italy.

XLV, 26 March, SGS signalled approval that Cadorna accompany
Parri. |
XLVI. 256 Harch. Kicholson signalled SGS that X and McNeely

had just returned from conferences with 476 and two Swiss inter-
mediaries, one of the latter two having been in contact with
Critic's alde, Graduate, who travelled betwesn Milan and the
froatier. According to Graduate, Critic's HQ had had no word from
him until late 24 March, when 1t was established that Critiq could
not return before Wednesday, 28 March. Critic hoped that the

SUNRISE Party "would not go away angry".

]
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XL?II; 27 March. Nicholson wired SGS that thers had been no
word from Critic the previous evening.

Although it was too early to comment on the significance
of the report with relation to SUNRISE, Rahn and Harster had both
been returned to Germany and, it was understood, were participating

in o meeting at Eitler's HQ.

ALVIII. 27 March. Nicholson and KcNeely sent SGS their
appreciation of the situation: (See # 575 from Bern). Oritic's
free movements, his frequent absences from his HQ, the relay of
telephone messages betwaen Emperor's ﬁQ and Milan, and the
compliclty of members of his staff, all suggested & well-accepted
and sympathetic background for surrender, at least 1n $S circles.,
In the event of Critic's failure to return, or further delay,
there was no alternative left but for the SUNRISE Party to return

to AFHQ, leaving the original 0SS channels open for continued

contact.,

XLIX, 29 March. Nicholson and McNeely wired SGS a further
appreciation of events. A considerabls number of people wers
aware of SUNRISB, these including not only German authorities in

North Italy but certain elements of Swiss SI snd a fav people in

North Italian commercial and industrial circles. (Ses # 588 from

e

Bern).
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Critic was oxpected to return to hie HQ the evening of
28 March,

(During the night of 28 - 29 March, after an excher
of telegrame betwsen Caserta snd Annemasse, a plane was sent Lo

Lyon/Bron to pick up Parri snd Cedorna).

L, 29 March. Nicholson signalled SGS thst Parri and Cadorna
had left for Caserta only 'with reluctance. They had been assured
that every effort would be made to retura them to Rorth Italy when
conditions permitted. He rscommended that arrangements be made for
them to confer with G-3, G-5 and other staff sections concerned with
occupatlional problems, and to visit HQ AC and 15 AG

LI, 3C March. Nicholson wired SG$ that Oritic was then
believed tc¢ have returned to his HQ, that the SUNRISE Party was
leaving for Locarno to make arrangements for the next mesting
which might teke place over the weeksnd of 1 'April. If the situa-
tion did not develop favorably, he recommended that the Party be

permitted to return to Caserta.

LI a. 31 March. In # 593 from Bern, McNeely requested
that G-2 wire SUNRISE Party's appreciation of ‘the situation

(See Paragraphs XLVIII and XLIX) to Ge2 Yashington and DMI, London,

¥
T
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LI ». 2 April. SG8 repliad that Chief of Staff

%_?\:éL deemed it unwise to repeat mere opinions to higher hesdquarters.
o Reports to G-2 Washington and DMI would be confined to facts.,
/Bavk
LII. 31 March. BG8 queried the SUKRISE Party as to how
X 595
- nuch Parri and Cadorna knew about SUNRISE-OROSSWORD,
RBarn__ *

LIII. 1 April. Nicholson and McNeely wired 8503 that i{ wae

X bio Row ' confirmed that Critic had returned to his BQ after having
received & sympathetic hearing from the Zmperor who had
C\ws(s authorized him to speek with Glesier in his behalf. ¥hile

/\’o Critic intended to be in Switzerland Mondsy or Tussday, 2 or 3
Aﬁril. Richolson and McNeely did not pin much ho:ﬁe'on his
bringing Glezier as was intended. They thought, howsver, that
in order to reinsure himself persQnally, Critic would come with
gome offer, probably impractical, dealing with the rear areas

under his control.

p QEALS LIV. . 2 April. Nicholson confirmed his esrlier message that
Qoo Parri and Cadorne knew nothing about SUNRISE-CROSSWORD.
/%e:\‘q_’—

Lv. 2 April. Request was made that s speclal plene be sent

X(’\L’ \’“" to Lyon 3 April to pick up SUNRISE Party.

LVI. - 3 April. 0345 "B" hours. Word was sent to Bern and

Conuw w4 )

o
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Annemasse that a plane.wauld arrive at Lyon that afternoon.

LVII. 3 April. 1515 hours. Word came from Nicholson and
McReely (# 617 from Bern) that Parilli hed crossed the borde~
the morning of 2 April but had not besn accompsnied by Critie
who had been warned by Himmler that he was not to leave ltaly.
Critic had apparently conferred with Glagzier, according to
Parilli's report, but, as Nicholson and McKeely noted, neither
Critic nor Glazier had sent any smggestio'ns via Parilli as to
vhat ghould happen next. Nicholson and KcNeely had sent word
back to Critic that 4f he and Glazier wished to surrender, they
could send parliementalres to the Allies directly through the
lines, Oritic was reminded of his undertaking notAto carry out
Hitler's orders for the destruction of Northern Italy.

In view of developments, Nicholson and McNeely recommended

they be allowed to return to Caserta.

LVIII. 3 April. 865 wired SUNRISE that D/SAC had approved their

return on 4 April.

(eqire SUNRISE Party arrived at Karchinese the afternoon

LIX, 7 April. X signalled that the Swias press had published

T ppproved for Release: 2023/07/17 00033855 - .
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the story that two members of the Italian resiastance had dbaeen
llberated by the Germans to take rart in peace negotiations with

the Allles. Ferruccio Parri had been one of them,

LX. 7 April. X signalled that Oraduate had arrived Friday

S
%5{6’55‘ evening, 6 April, reporting that Critic was meeting with Glazier
N

Qv and others Friday night and Saturday morning and that Parilli
was bringing a full report,

5/ o LXI., 7 April. Wicholson wired to X a paraphrase of SAC message
%®" 595 . .
—rs to CCS, summarizing the SUNRISE-CROSSWORD apprecliation of devslop-

“Beva_ ments (See # 595 to Bern).

LXI1I, 8 April. X wired that Parilli had arrivad in Switzerland.

X L4
R A full report would be forthcoming.
Wevno,
LXIII. 9 April. #77647 from Bern gave a full account of Parilli's
X (,L}_’l report. He had delivered SUNRISH! messages to Oritic on 3 April.
KW“ Critic had met with Glazier the night of the 5th and again the

afternoon of the 7th.

On 6 April Critic bad met with his commanders and cautioned
each to prevent destruction within his own area. 4 statement
dictated by Critic as rerresenting Glazier's position had been

submitted to X. This, which was forwsrded in its original German

e
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in ¢ 646 from Bern, set forth stipulations of a surrender

with military honors and the maintenance of a substantial portion
of the Army Croup as a future instrument of order inside Germar-
Pointing out that the matter should be settled, if possible, -
one trip, Glazier, Boettiger'a'.nd. Critic had joined in an urgent
request that they be glven a draft of the capitulation which they
were expected to sign. Oritic had stated that Glazier was ready
to sign an unconditional surrender if it could be put in a form
which was consonant with his honor. Parilli and Graduate were
wadting in Switzerland in case SUNRISE had any messege to send to
Oritic or wished to give X any suggestions SUNRISE wished to convey

as coming from X.

LXIv, 9 April, Nicholson_'a reply to X suggested a message which
was to come from X after consultation with "his mili'tary advisersf:
It was imposeible to send a draft copy of any capitulation, as,
in accordance with the usages of war this was only to be handed to
parliamentaires on their arrival at an appropriate HQ. Any
parliamentaires who came through the lines should include officers
vith absolute authority to act in the name of the commander. °
Richoléon cautioned X against giving the Germans any N
excuse for claiming that the Allies were negotiating. The sole
object was to arrange for parliamentaires to come to AFEQ with full
Yowers to arrange the details of a military surrsnder. xm

further cautioned dgainst sending to the Germans, through inter-

Wt
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mediaries, anything in writing which the Germans could use to

suggeat that negotiastiong were in progress.

LXv. 9 April. X signalled the substance of a second memo

from Critic (See # 648 from Bern), wherein Critic confirmed
X g

%‘U“‘R Italy but stated that in some instances this would be impossible

ris obligstions with regard to preventing destruction in North

to control. Critic further stated that military action against
' the Partisans could only be withheld insofar as the Partisans
doslsted from guerrllla warfare. Critic emphasized that some
exchange for Parri and Usmiani was most urgent, or af least a
written indication that something in the way of an exchange was

being prapared.

LXVI. 10 April. X assured Nicholson that nothing had been done

% L6 which the Germans could construe as evidence that actual negotiations
K«W\— were in progress. Nicholson's message (See Parsgraph LXIV above)

%’”M had been conveyed to Parilli and Graduate, botk of whom were returning
-‘f“

to 'Fasa.nn the hight of 10 April.

If the matier were not settled by the weskend of 15. April,

X asked advice on the possibility of sending 476 and a radio

operator to Milan in order to facilitate communications.

% LS LIVII. 11 April. X signalled Nicholson that 476 was convinced
Ry o
Yovn— o
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LXX1.. 12 April. X signalled Nicholgzon suggssting that he
interview Mallaby who, through personal contact, might be able

to furnish an evaluation of Critic's motives.

.ﬁ‘%vf
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LXXII, 13 April. X signalled that Parrilli was expected to
return 14 - 15 April, that Oritic was 8till hopeful of results
and had had phone call from the Emperor's new HQ. Von Pohl,

who had 50,000 men in his command, would a@pprove surrender.

LXXIII. 13 April. X signalled that he had borrowad radio
operator from Hyde and had sent him into Milan to "meintain

contact with SUNRISE group" and would communicate direct to us.

Cperator told nothing sbout SUNRISE, It_ wvas 1mport§nt to keep
in mind that any mescage from him would be material received from
Critic, Parrilll, Graduate, et al, and all messages must, therefors,

be carefully screensd,

LXXIV. 13 April. 5G5S wired X that after careful consideration
they disapproved 476's proposed trip to Milan.

There was no satisfactory evidence that Oritic had pot
visited the Dmperor, that SGS deliasved ther.e was always an sven
chance that the Germans would attempt to make trouble between the °

Allies,

X was given permission to show his cable ¥ 626 from
Nicholson to 476.

LXXV, 14 April. Message in German stated that radio operator Walter

had safely arrived in Milen, asked if letter for 110 was meant for

2

Critic. ' Who was 4767 Bequosf that the staff map of Rovereto area
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be given the Professor.

LIXVI. 14 April. Signal from McNeely to 110 stated that Critic
had bsen making contacts with such Allied secret agencles with
which he could get in touch.

On 7 April, in a meeting at Bogliasco attended by Mussolini,
Glazier, Critic, Roettiger, Dollmann and others, it had been decided
to carry out a fighting withdrawal to thé Adige.

At an unspeciflied date, Critic had informed one sudsource
that he knew negotiations had taken place between a repraesentative
of the Allied Command and Grazianl and Pavolini, which negotiations
were viewed with disfevor by the German Command in Italy. Nicholson
commented that this seemed to fit in with Mallaby's story about his
meeting with Graziani.

Adccording to Critic, the German Command in Italy wss afraid
‘of rossible CGastapo reprisals, and they were waiting for the
inevitable disintegration of Germany which they considered imminent.

McNeely's own view was that Critic hoped to bhave 1% both
ways in that, while walting for the disintegration of Germany and
planning a fighting withdrawal, he and othe} CROSSWOED peresonslities
felt they were insuring themselves and at the same time helping general

* German policy by arcusing Russian susplcion of Anglo-American intentions.
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LAXVII. 15 April. MHessage to Hyde requested all details on
inatructions given to Walter and precise details as to contents

of letter.

LXXVIII. 15 April. Messsge in German from Walter addressed to
¥elbel in Lucerne said connections with Swiss telephone exchange
BAMBUHG had been good for several days.

LXLIX. 16 April. MHessege from 679 (Barnes) stated that Graduate

kad come to Lugano at noon that dsy, that Professor Husmann and

Weibel had conferred for an hour and a half at Luzerne.

Graduate carried a personal letter from Critic atating
in substance that he regretted the death of President-Rooaeveit; and
whatever harpened X counld count on Critic since he was convinced of
the logic of ideas dimcussad (1nlf1rnt meating 19 March); that
in spite of new difficulties, Critic was convinced of the final
success of Mtheir mutual effort.

Graduate reported that he had reached Fasano 11 April. Oritiec
bad been "very pleased® with the message Graduate bréught him'(Sge
Paragraph LXIV for Nicholson's suggested messags that no draft'copy
of any capitulation could be handed to him uatil thérarrival of
parliamentaires at an appropriate HQ). COritic and Graduats had left

Fasano to vigit Glazier who gave them a cold reception, ths reason
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belng that Glazier had hea?d that a British officer, naﬁQ unknown,
had contacted a staff officer of the Ligurian Go;ps and asked to
be presented to Glazier for the purpose of discussing surrender.
This EZnglishman referred to neg6tiations which had already been
had between Glazier and X, identifying X by his correct nama.

Glazier did not iea the Englishman but, believing himself
betrayed, threatened to send & cover-up letter to Joedl stating
that the Allies wished to push negotiations but that Glasier aid
n;t wish to do so until he had received Joedl's clearance. Rahn,
Boettiger and Critic had persuaded Glazier not to send the letter.

13 April, Himmler called Critic and instructed him to leave
immediately for Berlin by fastest possidle means. Instead, Critic
sent Himmler a letter by officer courier stating that~1t was useless
for him to‘com. to Himmler, that the Allied invasion of Germany
would be a gomplete success and that Himmler should come to Critic

. and nake use of existing Allied contacts to surrender thé whole 6f
Germany to the Allies.

14 April, Himmler called C;itic's HQ first in the moraing and
again in the.afternoon asking why Critic had ndt arrived., Critic's
édjutant‘told him that Critic was abuent but that a special courier
had bsern aent with & message $o Himmler;

Graduate stated that Oritic was now determined te surreander

with or without the consent of Glaszier. Though he was not completely
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sure of Glasier, Critic had seen the Chief Commanders on 12 and
13 April and felt sure they were with him ragardless of Glaszier,
Critic begéed X to stop any intensified offénaive. He would take
tfull responsibility and guarantes that during present week all
would be surrendered". Parilli was walting for Himmler's reply
ané would join Welbel, Husmenn and Graduate %o meet with X and
476, plenning to be in Bern late the night of 16 April.

Geulelter Hofer, who was completely in accord with Critic
wis reported to have talked to Hitler and Himmler 12 April and
to bave learned that they planned to stay ln Berlin and, instesd

of discussing the "reduit", were crazily talking of a new offensive.

LXXX, 16 April., Turther signal from 679 gave :I;r\xt.elligence items
reyvorted by Graduate: '
1, | The locstion of Glazier's EQ at Recoaro (South of Rovereto).
2. That Rauff, second in command of S§ in Italy, was now vholly
in accord with Critiec.
3. That the territory Zast of the Isonzo River had been trans-
ferred from Glazler's commend to Loehr's. Pohl had placed all
his Luftwaffe personnel West of the Isonso and, subsequent .to
Oritic's letter to Himmier, had blocked the Brenner with flak
to protecf. against entry f;-om the Weat, . .
Radio operator Walter was secure in Graduate's hoﬁu in

Milen, but that boinbings were making life and radio transmission difficult.
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LXXXI. 16 April. X signalled for further information on Oriti.é's

alleged contacts with other Allied agencies. Did Richolson and

¥cNeely know anything about tﬁo Bnglishman who had uged X's pam-
- The letter given Walter by Hyh was completely innocuous. It had

now heen recovered.

LXXXIX. 17 April. Uesaage from X (copy of which was sent to Paris
for 109) supplemented sarlier repo.rtsr ron the 15 April confsrence.
(Ses Paragraphs LXXIX and LXXX above). Parilli had seen Oritic's
letter to Himmler vhich was dispatched by Sayle who reached Berlin
at 1700 hours 15 April.

At 0700 hours 16 April Rauff (Oritic's second in command
of S3) called Parilli to Fasano whers Venner told him that after
recelving Oriti'c‘s letter, Himmler had called Critic several timc_e.
Oritic had left for Berlin via Municﬁ whers he was reported to have
arrived 1000 hours 16 April. There was no confirmation of bis
arrival in Berlin. ‘

Critic had given to Venner s message to be delivered by
Farrilli to X to the effect that Oritic was going to Berlin because
he thous}:t there was a chance to do something for the entire German
people. He expected to .re_turn 17 April, Oritic ordereci Graduate
to await news at the Ghie.u.o frontier and check poriodicaily at the

HQ at Fasano.

Sy
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X commented that Himm1;r might now eliminate Oritio;

alternatively, he might use Critie. to establish some contact for

Himmler himself. X woulgd naturally refuse to have anything to

do with the latter alternative,
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